INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of KEYSTONE BUSINESS
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31°' March, 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information {herein after referred to as “Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements”). -

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in I::or_iformity with ‘Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India:

{a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of a_ffairé of the Company as at 31" March, 2023;

{b} in the case of the Statement of_-PErofit and _l_.oss,"ci'f the loss {including other comprehensive income}
of the Company for the period énded on that date

{c} its Cash flows for the year-ended on'that date and

(d) the changesin e'q'Ui_ty_:'for thg_year'e'hded on that date.

Basis for Opinion-.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of Financials Statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethicat responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 40 of the financial statements, which describes the fact that the company has
made an application with the ‘National Company Law Tribunal’ for a ‘scheme of amalgamation’ of the
company with its parent company ‘' Team Lease Digital Private Limited” pending outcome of the application
as of the date of signing this report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the Board’s Report, Annexure to Board’s report, Chairman’s statement, (but does not
include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon}. The other information
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other mformatlon and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, -

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing s0, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the flnanmal statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. h 8

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Manageiment for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134{5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, Including
the [ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erroq.




In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levei of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements. S

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professuonal judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material miss_tatément of thezsfahdalone ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

*  Obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may invoive collusion; forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of mtern_al control.

s Obtainan. understandmg of. mternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disciosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date.of our




auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deﬁcuenues in internal control
that we identify during our audit. :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements .
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtamed all the mformatlon and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opmlon proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
- so far as appears from our examination of those books.

c) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement,
deait with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2023,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31
March, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2} of the Act, ..




g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure A" to this report.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of Companies {Audit and auditors), 2014, as amended in our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, to the best of our knowledge:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position other than those disclosed in the notes to accounts forming part of the financial
statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts mcludmg derlvatlves contracts, for
whiich there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred tothe Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,

A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the-accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested by the company to orin any other person or entity including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether; directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any""r’n__an‘her whatsoever by or on hehalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”}-or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries. .

- B}'--Tﬁe managemént has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons gr entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i} and (i) contain any material misstatement,

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contraventlon of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013




2. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure-B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable,

For Narayanan, Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 0023955

Srikanth v

Place: Bengaiuru _ Partner oo
Date: May 09, 2023 ~'Membership No: 241134

 UDIN; 23241134BGTBWD7452




Annexure - A to the Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Keystone Business Solutions
Private Limited {(“the Company”) as of 31* March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal-Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention'aﬁd detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the tlmely preparatlon of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
tssued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controis over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. S

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial repoiting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluatio;n_"of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control aver
financial reporting may become inadequate: because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Narayanan, Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants .
FRN: 0023955_

-~
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Place: Bengaluru Srikanth v

Date: May 09, 2023 Partner
Membership No. 241134
UDIN: 23241134BGTBWD7452




ANNEXURE B TO AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our
Report to the members of M/s. KEYSTONE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED on the Ind AS financial
statements for the period ended 31 March 2023,

According to the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

i Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of plant, property and equipment and intangible assets.

b} Plant, property and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verificationﬁ

¢} There are no Immovable Properties held in the name of the company

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including right of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year. -

e} No proceedings have been initiated during .the year or are"'pénding against the Company as at
March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

iil. a} The company isa service-oriented cbmpany and does not have any stock in trade and hence the
reporting requirement under this clause is not applicable.

b) The Cbmpany has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of & 5 crore, in aggregate,

at-any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3{ii){b} of the Order is not applicable.

i, The company has granted unsecured loan to a company during the year, in respect of which:

a} the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee,
or provided security to any other entity not being a subsidiary, associate or a joint venture:

B) the aggregate amount of loan provided during the year is Rs. Zero, repayment received is Rs. 235
lakhs, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. zero.




b)

c)

d}

e)

f)

vi.

vii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of loans granted by the
company are not prejudicial to the interests of the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the repayment period is not stipulated in the loan agreement, however the loan
has been repaid in full during the year and that interest for the year ending March 2023 has been
fully accounted for,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, there are no amounts overdue with respect to the loan.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us the above-mentioned loan has not fallen due durlng the year, hence the reporting
requirement under this clause is not applicable. ;

the Company has granted the above-mentioned 'Io_an which is repayable on demand the aggregate
amount of loan and provided and repayment re_c'ei\éed along with the balance outstanding has been
provided above in item (B} of sub clausé:_(a) of Clause (iii) of this order.

In our opinion and according to. the'-informa't__id'n and explanation given to us, the company has
provided loan to a body _cqrporat'e which has been squared off during the year. Based on information
and explanation provided and based on our audit procedures, it has complied with the provisions of
Section 186 of the companies Act 2013,

In our opinion, and éccp'rd'ing to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposit's'as per the directive issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the provisions
of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under,
Accordingly paragraph (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under sub-section () of section 148 of the Companies Act, for the
products/ services of the company.

(a) The company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income-tax,
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, , Goods and Service tax Cess and
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.




viil,

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, Goods and
Service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

{b}According to information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
outstanding dues of income-tax, wealth-tax, service-tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty, value
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

{a) Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not availed loan from banks, financial institutions and government and has no debentures.
Accordingly, reporting requirement under 3 {ix} is not appilcable h

{(b) The Company has not been declared wilful-_defa!.l_ﬂter by any. bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority. :

{c) The Company has not taken any térm'loan" during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reportmg under clause 3{ix)(c} of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) The company has not raised any funds "during the year and hence the reporting requirement
under clause 3(ix} d-is not applicable.

(e) The'Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligationsof its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix){f} of the
Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us the company
has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments) and any term loan during the year.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally} and hence reporting;un n
3{x}(b} of the Order is not applicable.




Xi.

xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

xv.

Xvi,

xvil,

(a) Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations given to us and as
represented by the management, No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢} Whistle blower mechanism is not applicable for the company and hence the reporting
requirements under Clause 3{xi)c is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting requirement under clause 3({xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company,

Based on our audit and according to the information and explanations give'n to us and as represented
by the management, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the companies Act 2013, and the same have been disclos___ed'fih the in the notes forming
part of Ind AS financial statements under Note-32 as required by applicable Indian Accounting
standards.

According to the information and expluén_'atio'ns giv_en.;tb_;:US'and as represented by the management
the company does not meet the criteria for undergoing an internal audit according to the provisions
under the Companies Act, 2013, hence, the reporting requirement under this clause is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the Ind AS financial- statements ‘and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them.

{a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi)(a}, {b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

{b} In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3{xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable,

The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year covered by our audltand in
the immediately preceding financial year. :




Xviii.

Xix,

XX,

XXi,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.'

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company for the
current financial year and accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx){a} of the Order is not applicable
for the year. L

The company does not have any subsidiary as_deﬁned unde_r‘t’hé Companies Act, 2013 and hence the
reporting requirement under this clause is not applicable.

For Narayanan, Patil and Ramesh
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0023955

CHARVERED

ACCOUNTAN

Place: Bengaluru Srikanth V
Date: May 09, 2023 Partner

Membership No.241134
UDIN: 23241134BGTBWD7452
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Keystone Business Solntions Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 Mar 23
(Al amaunts in Rs, lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

N As al As al
otes 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
ASSETS
Non-curvent assets
Properly, plont and equipment 4 - -
Intangible assels 5 3700 4.0
Financial assets
Lusats i -
Other fmangial assets 7 - -
Drelerred tax nssels (net) 8 - 209
Trcoime: tx agsets {ned) 9 1160 43.68
Total non-current assets 4866 120,37
Current assets
Financial assels
Trade recervalbles 10 - 52.37
Unbilled Revenue 10 - 1261
Cashoand cash equivalents It 1864 80017
Banl balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 950,00 H30.400
Loans ] - 235.00
hher financisl assets 7 19.07 0.5%
Chther curvent assels 13 22.67 114
Tatal current assets 1,010.38 1,040.87
Total assets 1,059.04 1,161.24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Lquity share capiial 14 4.26 4.26
e ety [ 1.453.21 106243
Total cquity 1057.47 L6709
LIABILITIES
Mon-current Habilities:
Financial Balilities
Met employee defined henefit hubiliies 1Y - 2.62
Total non-current liahilities - 262
Current liabilities:
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables
{a) Total outsianding dues of micre and small enkerprises 17 - 0.41
(b} Total outstanding dues other than (i) above 17 149 73.96
Cther financial labilities 18 0.02 .67
Met employee delined benefit liabilivies 16 0.00
Clver current liabilities 19 0.0 7.50
Tatal cnrrent Babilities 1.57 91.54
Total lialvilitics 1.57 .16
Total equity and liabilitics 1,05%.04 1,161.24

As et oue vepaort of even date.

For Maravaoean Patil and Ramesh
FCAI Firm Registration Number 1 (023955
Chartered Acconntants

Srikanth V

Pariner

Membership No: 241134
Place: Bangalure

Dater May 09, 2023

CHARTERED Yo
ACCOIRETARTS | (0

For and on belalf of the Board of Directors
Keystone Business Solwtions Private Limited

Ramani Dithi
Dicector

DIN: 08296075
Place: Bangalope
Drate: May (09, 2023

aka Chanda
THirgctor
DIN: 08836604

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 09, 2023



Keystone Business Soletians Private Limiled
Scandalone Statement of Profic and Loss for the period eoded 31 Mar 2023
(Al amoants in Rs, lakhs, unless othe rwvise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended

Netes 31-93-2023 31-03-2022
Income
Reveme fm operation: 20 RusT AR
EMher income ] 4793 41 57
‘Total incoine 137,50 624,80
Expenses
Emplevee benelits exprese 22 6020 A 33
Finance Cosls 3 - -
Drepreciation and amartization exponse 24 REXE] 3700
(hher expenses 25 43,89 22342
Tutal exgrenses 4209 AGILTS
Profil Before tax {4.59) (25.95)
Tax expense:

- Cunent fax 2.81 -

-l adjustiment For carlicr years {148y -

- Taetiorred oy B 204 {3.58)
[icenie BIX oxprise 5,012 {3.58)
Profit Ffor the Perdod {9.61) (22.37)
Other comprehensive mcome
[Hems that will met be reclassilivd 4o profil o7 1oss in subseqieent peviods: ]

Remeasurament gains{losses) of delined benelis obhgation . 1516
Incuie 1o eliect - {3.82)
xther comprehensive ineome [or the peciod, net ol tax - 11.54
Total comprehensive inceme for the peried. wel of (ax .61} (1 1.03)
Farmings pec equily sharve of Rs. 10 cach:
Basic and diluwed (R 27 (22.55} (52.48)
LFor Narayanan Patik and 1tamesh Forr andl nnn bebalf of the Board of Directors
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Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Standslone Sintement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31 Mar 23
(Allamounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

As at As at
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Operating activities
Profit belore tax (4.5%) (25.95)
Adjustments Lo reconcile profil before tax 1o wet cash Mows:

Amortisation ol mtaongible assets EXRUY 7on
Finance income (45.31) (37.82)
Gratuity expense - 3.60
Liability ne longer 1o be required (402} -

Warking capital adfustments

[Inereazerdecreane in rade receivables Billed 52.37 236040
(Inerease)decrease in rade receivables Unbifled 12.61 4378
{huerease)idecrease in other assets (12.52) {0.22)
bierease/{decrease) In wade payables (7287 31
Invreaseddecrease) in other tmancial Kabiliies (9.65) {11.36)
Increasefidecrense) in other cupreni liabilitics {7.44) (1,11}
Ingreasedecrease) in provisions 1,440 -
{53.03) 165.49
Income tax paid (including TIS) (net of refunds) 29,69 (27.40)
Net cash flows from f {used in) vperating activities (23.34) 23800

Tnyesting activities

Investment in lixed deposit (Net of redemption progecds) (300,00 {305.00)
Loan given o related parties {nel of repayments) 235,00 48.00
Lnterest veceived 642 37.74
Met cash Mows Trom / (nsed in) investing activities (3418 {179.22)

Financing activities
Tterast paid - -
Nt casl flows {irom { (wsed in) linancing aclivities - -

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents {61.52} 58.48
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginting of the period R0 16 21.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the perlod 18.64 8010
Sumrmnary of significant accounting policies 3

Note: There are no changes in habihities arising from fimeial activities.

The accompanying noles are an fotegral part of the stamdalkene financia) stalements.

As por our report of even date,

For Narayanan Patil and Ramesh For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors

[CAl Firn Registration Number : 0023955 Keystane Business Selotions Private Linited
Chartered Accoumtants

CHARTERED

ACCOITNTARTS -
Srikantls V S aasen \)QS) Raman Datln Alaka Chanda
Mgl ) ,
Parter et Director Drirector
Membership Mo: 241134 DM DR2966T 5 DIN: ORE56604
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalors

Trate: May (W, 2023 Date: Muy 09, 2023 Date: May U, 2023
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Keystone Business Solutions Privaie Limited
Motes w the Tk (v izt sLat ts for the year ended 31 Mar 2023

Cuorporsie information
Keystone Business Solulions Private Limited {(Lhe "Company™ was jucorporated on Movember 27, 20004,
The Company is privarily engaged in the basiness of information wehnology and consalting and produet developmoent and other allied

activilies.
The et 5
Limvited) was £, Fel
entity,

s af the Company was Tlly sequined by Teamlease Digial Private Limited Tormerly Teambcase Staffing Services Py
v 01 2017 The ultimake holding company of the Company is TeanLease Services Limited, o NSE und BSE listed

I P I

The Lrlon are approved by e board of dircetors asd aulhwrized e
dircctors v May (4, 20235

ssme - accordance wille @ reselubion of e

Basis of preparation

(1) Complianee with Ind AS

The Lalone finamcial ol fhe Cappany have bean prepared in aceondaige with Deliap Accoonting Stadates (Dl A5) notilied
under the Companivs {Indian Accotmting Standards) Rules. 2015 {as amended foom fine to line).
Accouniing pelicies have been c‘:\n«l%len!y applicd excepl where pewly izswed accomting standind Js init
might not abways add apow the yeur ligeres in fhe acconnling policy.

(ilY Historicad cosl convention

The Tinnial statements have been prepared unoa hi sul st Busis, excepl for the fullowing:

a) Cortain fimameial assees and Babilities measured at Bty value az explained in the accounting policies below, and
Iry Dnefineat benelit plans pla assels measured a1 e volue

aly adopted for the previows vear

Historical cosl is genrerally based on he Fair value of the consideration given i exchange for goods and services as at the date of respective
Insast s,

The Lalone linancial stal L e presentec in Tdian Bipee amd sl vadues are rotndied 1o pearest Rkl exce when otherwise stated.

Summary of signilicant aceonnting pelicies
Curreml versus nen-curretd classification

The Company presents assets and Labililies in the balance sheet Based on cuerent! non-current classification. An msed is ented as carrent
when il is:

- Expevted to b realised or intended W sold or ¢ Fin nom operating eyelo

- Held primarily for the puese of trading

= Expected to e realised within twelve wanths after the reparting period, or

lasit or cash equivalent unbess restricted fiom being exclanged or wsed fooserthe o Jiability for ot beast twvelve months atter the repording
revicnd

Al other assels are classified a5 non cunenl,

wrell when:

i expevied kb sertbed in nonmad aperating cycle
- 135 held privnarily for the parpose of tading
= 1L is due o b sediled within dwelve monibs afier the reporting peried, or

- There i no uneonditiomal dght te deter i settlement of e Tubility for an Teast twelve muonths aller the reporting period

ithes all ather Tiabilitics as non-current,
re classilical s non-current assels amd Tidili

The T 0I1'I|)all} cha

Tor pravessing and Bieir realisstion in cash and cash squivalents, The

The operating a0 Lhe deqguisidion o ass
Company has considered welee months as its operating cycle.
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Keysenne Business Solutions Private Lonited

Motes o 1he standalone Gpancial T e year ended 38 Mar 023

Foreign ¢urvency iranstation

¢y unctional and pre mipn currengy

Ters included in the siandalone {inancial (s of the company are measured using the currency of the primany coonemiys envisonment in
which the entity operates, ic dhe “hunetiomid correney®, The Fatonws inam scenbed in India
nimetiemal and presention curency of the Company.

i) Transactions and balances

Furcign cun sctions are dtinlly recorded by the company al their respective lanclional cumeney spot rate at the dabe 1l L
first qualities for recognition
1y Momnetary assets s Jiabililies denoainated m foreign currencies are ranslated al e funclional curreney spoi rades of crelange at the

repuorting date.
2) Non-monetary fems, which are measured oerms of historical cosl denominated in o foreign currency, are translated using ihe exchimge
gavtes it thwe dike of 1he initial transactions, Nan-anonctary ems, which are measired ab fane value ar other simila vahustion desemigated i a
Ied wsing the exchamge rate an the date when Fair vatue was dete
| ol Y TCHNG B 1SCopi

[oreign vurrency, ae imn
3) Exchange dilfforences avising on st o
wihich thew arise,

s stal {of profit and foss in the period

Revenue Recognltion

Tl company canms revenue peimarily from munpower services and business IT services,

Revenue is recognized upon ansfer of control of promised services o customers inoan amount that veflects the consideration which he
company expechs 0 receive mexchinge of 1hose services.

Manpower services
Revenue from maupower services is accounted when the company satisfies the performance obligation agreed in the comract/Mandate leer
Fretuwzen thit compamy and s cushomen

ITES!Business Process Services

Revenne from {ixed price conlracts where he performance obligations are sabisficd over time and where there is no ancertainty as o

maasurerent on collectability of cansideration is recogaized as por the percentage conmpletion methaod. When thees is onecrainty as le

mesureiment or wltingte collectability revenue recognition is pestpene wtil such uncerlamty is resolved. Cost expended have boen used 1o
prog lowards plelion.

Reverns in eacess of nvoicing are classificd as Contract Assets while invoicing inexeess ol reventn: e clssiDed as Comeact Daliiiny.

Company disageregates cevepoe from contract with oustomers by nature of servives.

Use of Signiticant judg t5 im revenpe recop)
17 The company’s comtracts with customers could incinde promises to transier mmltiple services w a costomer, The company assesses the
int pevfornunue obligations in e contract, ldentification of distine perfermance obligation
rables.

services provaised ina contract g idemilics Jis

invloves judgenent 1w detennine the deliverables and the ahility of the customer wo beneliv independantly from such dediv

21 Dudtgement is also reguived 1o detenuing W Iraysaction price for the contriacls, The cattpany wses judpement Lo allocirts e tansaclion pr
1o cach pertormance ebligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of cach disting] syrvicee promidsed in the conlracl.

satisfied at o point in tine or ever o pericd of line,
is being
| righs

3 The comy i pued g 1 in determining whether the performanue obligati
The company censiders indicators such as how customers consumes henelits as services ave renderad or who contrals the asset 3
created or existence of the enfoncealile right 0 payment for perfonmimey @ dite and allemade wie o0 such serviee, wnsler of sig
and rewards W the eustoners ole.

41 Revenue for Bixed price contract is recognized using percentage pi'completion method, The company wses judgement o estimate the fatnre
cost-te-completion of the contracts which is wsed to detormine the degree of eompletion of the performanee obbigation,

Inkerest Incnme
For all financial instewments measared atamorised cost, infenest incaie s cecorded wsing gw etfective mterest rte (EIRY. The TR s the e
fhat exaetly discomnls the estinated futre cash receipts over the expected life of e linancial mstoiment or g shorler period. when
el carrying amount of the financial asset. When calealating the ef (i Lrate. the Company estimaes the expected
clermg all the contractual lerms of the Tinancial msieoment b dues tol congider e expected credi bosses Intensst income
o income in the statement of profin ar loss.

appropriae, t
cash Aows by pon
[ luded in




A4

35

Koevstone Business Selutions Pyivate Linvited

Mates o the stamdalone financiat statements Gor The year coded 31 Mar 2023

Taxes

Income Tux

Income (K expense comprises current lax expense and deferred tax asset or Lability during the year. Corrent income tix assels and liabilities
are mweastred ot the amed expecied Lo by recovared Trom o paid 6 the axastion aulerilivs, Tl tax mdes and 103 lees wsed 10 copapite the
anvounst are these that e enacted or sabstantively enacted, ot the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generales
laxable wcome,

Carrent ingemie (i eelading (o fems vecognised omzide prafit or loss is recapnised outside profit or ss (either i aher comprehensive income
or i cyuity). Current L iens are recugnised i correladion 1o the undeclying rangaction cither w ather comprehensive income or dircedy in
cquity. Mamigenwnt perodically evaluades positions tken in he wx retoras with respect Lo siliations in which applicable s regilations an
sulyject to ierpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Preferred rax

Peferved 1ax b5 recognised using the Kability method on temporary differences between the fax bases of assels and Jiabilitics and their cirrying
amounts o Geangial reporting puiposes al the reporting Jate, Deferred fax ass wrecopmsed Tor ol deduclible wmporary differences,
cumyforward of unused 1ax credits and voused 1ax losses oniy if il is probable that Tuture taxable amwounds will be available fo wtilise duwse
tempurary differences, and the carry forward of wnsed 1ax credis and doused fax lossesexce|t:

* When the defored tax asel relating do the deduetible wemparary difference arses rom the nitial recoprition of an assel or liabalidy inoa
transaetion that is nod o business combination s, at e G of the trmsaction, atleets neiter the aecounting protit mes waable pralicor loss
B [ respect ol deduclible temporary dilth iated with in 1s int subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, defemed
are recognised only 1o Uw extent that W is probable that the fempoary differences wall reverse in the foraseeable Tulure and taxable
profit will be svatable agaimst which M wmporary differences can be wtilised.

iy dss

The carrying timonnt of deferred lax assels 5 reviewad ot cach reporting diate and redueed 1o the extent 1hat it is ne longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avadlable to allow all or part of the deferred 1ax asset o be unilised, Unvecommized deferred G assets are re-
assessed o cach reporting dade asd are recognised to the cxtent that it has beeome prabable ihat fulure taxable profits will allow the defermed
ax assel o be recovered.

Dzterred tax assels and labaliies are measueed a0 the s anes thal are expecied to apply in the year shien the asselis realised or the Nalbahiy 15
seltledl, based on tax rates (and Gix laws) thal e been 1 e sl ively 4 at the reporting date.

Dreterred s relating o itlems recogmsed owrsice profic or [oss s recognised owside profio or loss {edher mother comprebensive incame or in
equily), Deferrsed 1ax ilems are recognised m correlation to the waderlying on cither i other comprehensive Income or dweetly w

cyuily.

Deferred Lax assets and delferred ax liaty 1o sel off correnl 1as assels against current tax

linbdivies.

+ are ftsed 10 a legally enforceable right ©

Luases
The Company asscsses arb contract inceplion whedher i conteact is, or contain
use of an identified asset for & pevied of fime i exchange For considaranon,

a lease. That b, il the contract conseys the right to cotrol the

Whea the Company as a Lessee
The Company applics a single eniticn and me M T For all leases, except For shott-term Eeases awd leases of Jow-vahee assets,
The Company recogises lease liabilities to make lease payments and vight-of-wse assets epresenting the vight 1o wse the apderfying assets.

i) Right of use Assels

The Company recomises right-of-use assets al the commengement date ol the lease (e, the date (e widellying asse s available for wse).
Right-ol-nge assets are menined al cost. less any accunulited depreciation and impaivmend losses, and adjusted for any ol
lease Nabilitics. The cost of right-of-use as includes the anwunt of lease liah 5 recognisod, initial direct costs meurred, wnd lease
payments macle al o before the commeneenwent dute less any lease meenlives received, Righl-ef-use assets ave depreciated on a steaight-line
basds aver the shoner o the lense teom and the estimated uselid lives ol 1he assets,

5 ownership of the feased asset iansfers o the Company a1 the end of the bease teen o the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation 15 caledlited vsing the estimated vselul life of the asset.

The Aghl-ol-use assels ane also subject W@ impairment. Impaivment of pon-Maan
recoverable wmonnt e, the higher of the vl bess cont (o seldl and the value-

assels. For the purpese of impairment wsting, the
w inclividual asset beesis unliss the




-

ale Limited
wemenls [or the year ended 30 Mar 2023

Kevstone Business Solations I
Mot to Hie standualone fmuoci
§i) Lease Liabilities

present vidoe af lease paymcars 1 be mada
enlives receivable.

AL the commencerent date of e Jease. the Company neeogaises lease liabilities mwasw
over the lease wrm. The lease paypents inchade fixed payients (meluding imsubstance ixed payments) less any keuse i
vatiable lease payments hat depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected 0 be paid ander residual valve guarantees, The lease
payments abu include the exerciss price of o puichase option teagonably cerlain Lo be cxereisced by the Company andl payments of penaltics lor
ternimating Ehe hease, it the Tease teom retlects the Company exercising the option to fepminate. Yariable lease piyaments thit de got depel on
an index or a rate are recognised as eapenses (anless (hey ane mcurred W0 produce inventories) intbe pericd in which the cvent or condition that
triggers the paymenl occurs,
In cateabating fhe present vabe of lease payments, the Company tses its incremental borrowing rale al the Jeuse conmene
e fokerest rats implicit m e lease is not readily determinable, Aler 1he commengement date, the amount of lease liabi
reflect the secretion of interest amd veduced for the lease payiwl ke, I acklitiom, the carryiug amount of kease labililies
Ihere is @ modilication. & ¢hange in the lease fevm, a change in the lease payments {2.g.. changes o falire payments resulting from a change in
any inches, oF rate used o detenmine such lease payments) or u change i the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assel.

vt Jalis brecause
5 1g inereased
remasured il

Hiy Shore-teray leases and leases ¢f lov-value assets

The Company applics the shovt-genn lease recognifion exemplion (o ils shork-lerm leases of machinery al cquiprient {i.
have o lease leemt w1 12 mowths or Jess from the commencement date and do nat cuntain a prrchase option}. [ aso applies the Jease of low-
valog assels reeognition exemplion 1o Jeases of olfice squipmend Ehal are vonsidered to be low vadue, Lease payments on short-tenn leases and
are revopnised as expense o a steighteline basis over e lease tanm.

£ these fea

Jeases ol Tow-value ass

Property, plant and cquipment

Capital work i progress sud Phat aud cquipment is stated af cost, net of aceumulated depreciation and ace
Such cost ncludes the cost of replacing part of the plast and egquipment and borrowing costs G long-erm comstniction podects il the
1eengnition criterias me met, When sipniticant parls of plant and equiputent are reguired 1o be replaced at imtervals, the Company depreciates
(hemm Decaraely based o their specific oselul lives, Likewise, when a major mspection is owmeel, ils cost 35 ceeognised m e carrying
amannt al’ the plant sl e us a reph 1l e ition wrilerias arve satisfied. AR other repair and mgdntenance costs are
recopnised in profil ov loss as incureed.
An itemt of propeny, plant and I
ceamenic benefils are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss anising on dececognition of the assel (valeulsed as the difference
Between the net disposal procecds and the carrying amonnt of the asset) i inchaded by the inceme statement when the assel is derecopnised.
The restdual values, usetul Hves and methods of deprecimion of property, plint ancl equipment are reviewsd at cach finmeial year end and
afjusted proapectively. il appropadate,

lated impairaent losses.

and any sighili part inftially recognised 5 derecognised wpoen disposal o1 when o future

Depreciation methods, estinsied useful lives
Depreciation is caleulaled using the wreitten down value methad over e estimaled wselul Hves of the property, plant & equipment as

preseribed under Pan C of Sl 10arthe act as fullows;

Asset Life in Years
Cumpulers 3

Frevniting sl £ix) 1

CHfice equiproent 5

Vehiches L

Intany
Intangible assets acquied Dees
wost less any aceunulabed amor

e Assets

ely ave measored on e recognition al costPotlowing inilial recognilion, intangible assets are curriced at
arion and accunudated impairment losses, it any.

The wielioh Tives ol intangible assets ave assessed as either fnite or indefinite.

Intangible azsely with e lives ore amonised over the useful seonomic Lifs and asgessed for impairment whenever the aicn that
Ihe intangible assel may be impaived. The smontisaticn poriod anc the amortisation method For an intangihle asset soatheoa finite wseful Bl ane
reviewed al least al the end of 2ach reporting periad. Clinges in the expecied useful life or the expected pattem of consumption of futare
ceonomiv benedils conbodicd in the assel are considered to madily e amon ization period or method, as appropriate, and are aeated as changes
i i ing vsis L The amentization cipense on intangibhe assets wilh finte lives i recognised in the statement of protin and loss unless

such expenditure forms par of eanying valug of anothet assel.

L

Iaternadly generated i ibles, excluding capitihsed devel ooty are ol capitidized and Me relaed expenditme: i reflected in prolil o
b m Ahe peviod mn whieh the expendivure is incarred.

g Fronm devecogiiion of an mGngible el are megsnred ax the diflerence between 1he net dispozal proceeds and U
canrying miouonl of e asset and are recognised in the statement of prolit or kss when the agsel is derecognised.

Liains 1 losses 3

Asumnrary of 1he podicies applicd fo the Company™s itangible agsels is. o8 follows:

Assel

Sodiware gther than HR1S

HREIS Sofiware 5 yenrs
Custenner Relationship 3 yeiars
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Keystone Business Sodutions Priviate Limited
Mates Lo ahe stancalone fnancial satements for the yoar ended 31 Mar 2023

Towpairneent of non-Fnancial assels

The Company assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is an mdicanon that any property, plant & eouipment ad intangible assals may be
inpaircah, Fa or when annual Impainmend lesting for an assel is requi the Company
anwnnt. Adtssel's revoveable amaunt is the igher oF an assets o cashegenerating unit™s {CGUY G value bess costs of disposat and il value
inuge. Recoverable amowt is delermined for an individual assel, unless the asset does not gencrate cash inflows that are largely independent of
these from sher asels or groups of wssets. When the comying amowst of an assel or OGL exceeds its revoverable ameunt, the ausel is
vonsidered impaired and is writlen down e ity regoverable amoun.

T assessing valug in use, the estmated future cash Pows ave discoumted 1o b present valoe using @ pre-tax discomt rate that refleets eurvent
marker assessawnis oF the ume vadue of money and the ri i 1o the assel.
New-fimneinl azsets other than goodwill that suffersd an ilopairment are reviewed for pozsible reversal of the impaivment at the end of each
reporting perivd.

divalion vx

Financial inst ranents

A finaacial i [ER N (T

enlity.

sed ol ome entity and a nancial litbiliny or e

TEment is aEy contet than giv 1y instrument of ansiher

izl recopnidion and measwrement

Faneiaf asseks and Tinancial liabilities are recognised when the Company becories a party to the contact embodying (e related finmnind
instruments. All financial assets, Anancial labilites and finaocial gemanies contiacts are wmitially vweasared al oanzaction enst and where such
values ave diftzeent fiom the G value, i fair value. Transaction costs that ave directly awilvibutable 1o the aequisition or issue of hnancial assels
aml firancial liabilitics (sther than financial assets and oancial Habilics a0 fair vatue theawgh profit and lossh are added o or deducted from
e Tair valoe asessnred on itibial recognilion of finanial assel or inuacial fiubility, Transaction costs directly atiribulable o the acguisttion of
il assets and Fnancial Habilities 20 Gair value theough profit and loss are ionmediately recugnisad in the consolidated statement of profit
0 case of intarest free or concession lans ¢ debenluess £ prelevenee shaves given o subsidiarics and assoeiates, the excess of the
actuad aoeunt of the lean ever initial measuee ot e value is aceounted @8 an cquity invesiment.

Invesment in equity nstruments issied by subsidiaries and wales are fan cost less inopairment. Investmen! in prefarenes shares!
debemures of the subsidiavics are treated o cquily instroments il the same are converlible inty cquity shares or are redecmable out of the
proceeds of eguity ins it el Bar the purpese of redemglion of such i Invesiment i preference sharesd debentuees not
meeting the aforzsand conditions are vlassified as debi instruments al amortised cost.

Eifective imerest methed

Tl efleetive interest method (EIR) is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a fin
expense over e relevant peeiend, The cllictive erest it is the rate thad exactly disconts
expected life ol the financial insiument, o where appropuiate. a shovter period.

ial insirmment and of allecating inleresi income or
@ cansh veecipls o paymenis through the

Financial assets are subsequently measured al amontised through effective interest method il these financial assets are held within a business
merlel whose chjective is 16 hold Wese assets i order W colleet contractel cash Nows s the contractual lerms of the Tisaneial dsse give Fise
o speviied dates 10 cash Nows thal are solely payments of principal wnd interesl on the principul amownt oulstanding,

Fimancial assets at Fair value threugh ether comnprehensive income

Finz assets are measured s Bair value through other comprehensive income if these linancial assets are held wi
ehjective is achieved by bath collecting contractual cash Mows and selling financial assets and the contrctual terns of the Tnanoi asset give
1ise on specified dates 1o cash fHows thal are salely payments of principal and inkerest oo the principal amound oudsiandiap.

s wlnkse

Financial assers at (ke value theongh profit and Joss

Fingncial assets are measured a fair value theongh prolit o loss unless it b measured al aoktised cost or af Baiv value thiough wiher
compreh c icome oo inidial recognition. The transaction costs directly auribatable to the scquisition of Tmancial assets o Eair valee
hrough profit or kiss are immedialely recognized w statement ol profin and Joss.

Impairment of financial asscts

I sccwndance with Indd AS 1, the Company applies expected eredit loss {BCLY mode] T measurement s reeogniiion o impairment loess on
Fimeiat assets Loss allowanee for expeckad credit losses is recognised For lindncial assets measured w0 amertized costand [air value through
profivor loss.

For finus
chedit lissen o tecoenized, Loss allowance cqual o the it
nifcantly increased sinee initiad weeogmition.

assels whose eredil risk has not significantly increased since initial recoanition, kess allowance equal to lwelve months expected
me expected vredil bosses i recopmised i the credit sk on the financa

insluments iy s

Equity instumenis
Yhe company sulscgaently : Al equity investments at Fur valne, Wiere (e Compuny checled (o presint alug paing
equily Tvestments in olher comprehensive income, ihere is no subsequent reclassilication of Bair value gains and losses to profit ov duss.

Divide s (rom such investmment: aee recognised in profil or less as olber income when (he Company's right Lo recegive payments is cstadlished,

| B on

Changes i e T value of financial assews an L value theoagh profitor less are recopnzed molher gandlosses) i the staterent ol poth
and Loss. Tmpairmenl losses (and reversal of impainnent Risses) on cquity investments ocasired al FYOCT are no eeported Decaratedy- Grom
other changes in M value, Iy :
[

(”‘ / Y
o '\BANGALORE 5

i -
k.
< 5

\:-‘--, e,

A}




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Hotes w the dalone financial far 1he year eaded 31 Mar 2023

Derecognition of financial assess

sferred T riglits Lo reveive cush Mot from the linancial assel or welaing 1he
don o pay the cash ows 1o ane ar more

AR ial asset is derecug
comtractual righls o receive he cash tlows of the Tinancial
reCipicnls.

1 anly wher te Company has (i
assel. bul assumes & contrctual of

Where the entity has tramsferred an assat, e Company evaloales whether it has tmisferred substantially ol risks and rewards of vwnership of
the financial asser. In such cases, the Muancial asset is derccognised. Where the entity hag not tanslerred substantiably all eeks and vewards of
ownership of the Fnaneinl asser, the Tmancial isset s ot derecoghised,

aned sewurds oF ovenership of dne fnancial asiel, the
5 vontie] ol the

Where the entity has weither transfermed o fnanceal assel nor retaing substatiolly @l risks
li fal aesed s gnised il dbe Company has not retamed conteol of the finaneip] asset, Where the Company retai
finaneial asser, the agser 15 contined 10 be recogized 19 the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(i} Femancial Liabilitics

Yinamcial Babidities al amortised cost

Financial liabilities are initisdly measwed o G valug, pet of transaction costs, and are subsegquently measwred ol amertised cost using the
elfegtive bsderest melhod. For rade and other payables naturing within one year from the balanee sheet date, the carrying amonnts approsimate
fair value due o the shoet rermy ratnrity oF these i
cial labilities at FYTIL

cial labilities at fair valoe theough profit or lo:
recognition a5 al fair vilue through profit ot koss,

Finan

wehl for teacing s fmancial liabilitivs designated upon initial

Firaneial Nabilities desgiaed wpon inital recopnition at fir value theough profin or Joss wee designaled at the it date of recognition. and
oniy i (e criteria in Ind AS 109 are satislied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses auributable 1o changes in own credit
isk are reengnised in OC], These gainsfloss are st subzeguently tensferned Lo the statement of Profit and Lass. However, the Company may
s ter the cundalive gain or loss within equity. Al otber charge in fir walue of such lability ave recognisad in the stalement of profit or fess.
The Company hag not destgnated any Tinancial ability as a1 fiar value hrough peolit or loss.

Financial Fabilities at FYTPL reprasented by comi ddecation ave egagyred 0 e vahie with all changes weeogndsed in the statement
af el sl boes

Derecognition of financizt liabilities

el liability is derecognised when the ebligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing financial
¢ i replaced by anolber from e same Tenler on substantiafly HiTevent terms, or e ks of an cxisting Nability @re sulmslnlialy
mudified, sueh an exchaoge or modificution is weated s the derecognition of the original liability and the recomition of a new liabilice. The
difference in the respective camying amounts is recegnised in the statement of profit or loss.

{Hlsetling of financial instrunents

Financial assets and Gnancial liabilities are ofFetand the ngt amount is reported i the Dalanee sheat il ibers is enforceable legal right o ofTse
the recognised amounts and 1here is an inteniion W settle on 2 net asis W realise the assets and setthe the liabilities simultaneously. The kepudly
snforcealde right must ol e contingent on future gvents and must be enlorcealsle n the novonal conrse of business and w the event of defanl,
insolvency or hankeaptey of the Conpany or the counteparty.,

{iv} Fair value of Goancial instruncats

In determining L tair vadue of it financial mstruments, the Company wses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on

nrarket conditions and risks existing ar each reporting date.

Ialr valwe bieracchy:

All asgets and Habilities for which fair value is measured or dischosed in the fnanciad statements ave categorized within the fadr walue hietarciy,
deseribed as Tolliss, based on the knvest level inpud that i signilicant @ e B value measurement as a whole:

P Level | -—Ouaeted (unadjosted) menket prices i active mankets for identical wisets or lab 23

b Level 2 - Valuation feclmiyues for which the krwest level input thad is significam 1o the Tuir valie measurement is direetly or indirectly

ohservable

P Level 3 —Valuation wechnigues for which the Jowest level inpun thal @ signifieant W the Bir value measurement is unahservalle

For assets and | tes that aze vecognized i the financial statements on a recurrmy basgis, the Campany delerines whether lansfers have
oceurred between tevels in the hicrazchy by ne-ass g categorization {based on the lowest bevel input 5 signilicant o B B value
measuremenl 25 3 wholed ar the end of each reporiing perind.

A1 Cash and cash equivalends
Cagh and cash eguivalent in the standilone Sakinee sheet comgise cash at banbks smd on Band and she-nm deposits sathoam originad aturity
of thyee momihs or less, which are sulect o an ngsignibcant risk of chaages n value,

Far the purpose of presentation in the statement af cash Dows, cash and cash cquivalents includes cash on hand, shoti-lerm deposits with
original maturities of three months or less 1hat are readily convertibile 10 known amounts o cash and whicl are sabject o an msigmlteam gk

of changes 1o value, and bank overdralls.

Hank ovendialls are shown sithin borrawmngs m current liabikilics in dhe bulance shecl.
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Kexstane Business Solations Private Linvited

Mertes to the standsthone finacial sial 15 Ton (e yoar ended 31 M 2023
Employes benelits

Post-¢implnvenenl oblizations

The company operates the following pust-emplosinent schemes:

Lo} delmed benwed i plaws - graduil
by dedined contriburion plins such as pravident fand.

Drelined benefit plan

Gratuity oblizations

Giravuity, which i a detmed benelil plin, i acorued based on s independent acluarial valuation, which i done based on prigeet wait credin
as al (e balanee sheel date. The Company recognizes the net obligakion of a detined benefit plan in s balance sheet as an asset or

met
liahiliry.

Remeasurement gaing angd losses arising frem expenence adjnstiments and changes i actwarial assiniptions are 1ecognised i the penod in
v ineome and s anstered woretained camings in the staweneent of clumges in equity i Uwe bakance
ave nof veckassified te the stalement of and lovss dn sulbsequend peiads,

which Lhey seeur in wiher conpref
sheet. Such acenmulaled re-measnremer

Past serviee costs ane recognised o prolToor loss on e calior of :
a1 The dive of the plan amendment or curtailmeit. and
B3 The dare that the company recapnises reladed restrueiiring gosts.

Net interast is cadeutied by applyme the disconnt mte o e ned delimed bene Pt lability or asset, The Gronp recognises the fullewing chanpes
in e net defined beoefit olligation as an expense in the standalane statcment of profit and logs:

P Service cosls comprising current service costs, pasl-service costs, gains and losses on eurlailments aod non-rewding senlements; apd

P e et Sxpeling o meoms

Brefined contribution plan

Contributhne to Government Provident Fine

The Company pays provident fund conteibutions 1o pullicly administered provident funds as per applicalide regulations, The Company has no
further payment obli s eoee (e contributions havee been paid. The contrilirtions aee acceunted For ag defined contribution plans and the
conlributions are recognised as employee benetil expense when they are due.

Comprensated alisences

The emplovecs of the Company are entitled o be commpensatal for mavailed leave a5 per the pelicy of the Company, te Babiliny in respect of
which is provided, based on an aciuarial valuation {using the projected woil eredit methad) 2t the end af 2ach vear, Acewmuiated compensaled
absenees, which are cxpecled 0 be availed or encashal within 12 nionths from the end of tw year end are treated a5 shorl term employee
benefits and those expected 1o be availed or encashed bevond 12 months Trom the end of the year wid are ieated as other long weem empleyes
benetitg. The company™s Mabality is actwwially determined fusing Projected Unil Credit Method) af U end of <ach year, Actuarial guins? lovses
are vecogmised in the Sutement of Prelit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

PProvisions and eontinzent lability

Pra n

Provisions are recoguised when the Coypany bas o present oblgation Jugal or copstructived ws o resalt of o past event, it s praballe thal an
aulflow ol resources embodying ceonoemic benetils will be reguired to settle the obligation and o reliable estimate caw be made of the amsount of
the ebligation. When the Company cipects seme or all ol a prosision s be reimbused, the reimbamsement is recagised a3 a Decarate asict,
bl enly when the reimbusement ks virtgally cerlain, The exponse relating to o provizion is presenled v e statement of prodit and loss el of
any renmbursement.

161l ¢lfect of the time vabue of money is maerial, provisions ane discounted ustng a curent pre-lax wate that retleets, when appropriate, the
risks specific w the Lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision dus o the passage of ime is recopnised a5 a finanee cost.

Warranty provisions
Provisions for wananiy-related costs are vecognized when the produet is sold o service provaded i e costomer, Toial recogmibion is based on
1] estinrte of wanauy-relited costs @5 revised anpmally. Based on past expeticnee, oo provision for warcanty is

historical expericnve. The ini
aceomed,

Coniingent Nability

Cuntingett Babitity is a pussible abRgation (hal arises from past events whese existence will be confiomed by the ocourrence o nun-vccumence
of DI OF MR Une 1 futueg events beyond the conteol oF the Campany, or a present obligation that mises from past events where it is cither
vt probaby 1hat an oulflow of resotress will be reyguired 1o sellle the obligalion.

i extremely rare cases where there is a liabilite that cannon be measured reliably, The Company docs not
its exasteney it e standalone e staements,

A contingent liability afsc
recomnize o vontingent lahilitg bt disclose

Cash dividend distribatlon te equity iolders
The Company recognizes a lability 1o make eash distribations to eguity holders of the Company when the distobation is awhorized and 1he
distribulion i s donger o the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on sh re recorded s a linbility on she due of appoval by-ths
sharehalders and imerim dividends are cecorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Buard af Divectors. abf:’
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Kevstone Business Solotions Private Limited
Noles 1o 1he standalone nsncial stalements for the yeur ended 30 Mar 2023

Earnings Per Shaee (KPS

Basie EPS s caleulated by di 2 the profithoss for the vear atiributable w egquity shareholders of he company by (he weighled avetage
nuetber of equity shares austmding darmg the year, Dilated EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit atiributable (o cquivy helders of the parcin
aller adjusting for convertible preference shares) by Une weighied sveage oumber of equity shares oimstanding during e year plis the
] average number of eguity shares thal would be issued on conversion of alt the dilutive potentiat equity shaves into equily shares.

Shmini i jud limates and ii

The preparation of the Company's Iakerne i il reguires mamageinent Lo make jndeenents. estinmates and assumiptions dhal
alleet the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitics, aned 1he accompanying disclosures, and the discloswre of contingent
Tiabilities. Unecriamty about Mese assamptions and estimales could resull in owicomnes thal cognite & material adjustment Lo the carcying
umoumt o assels o1 liabi flected in fulnre periads.

Estimates and assumption
The key assumptions conceendng e Ratare and other ey soincds of estuvation unvertaimy al e weporting date, that have a signiticam nisk of
casing amaterial adjiustment Lo the carrying mnounts of assets and Babitities within the next linancial year, are described belaw. The Company
haseel dls asswptions and estimates on parameters avalable when the lnancial stotements were prepaed, Exsting citcumstances and
asammptinng abow fire developments, uwever, may change due to markel changes or cire g that are beyond the control of
The Company. Such changes are redlected in the assumptiong when they oceur.

Impairnent of non-financial assets

Ipainment ¢xisls when the camying value of an asset o cosh generaling wnil exceeds its recoverable smomnt which is higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and the value iy use. The Tk vabie fess costs of disposal calculation is based on available dala Tom binding sales ransactions,
corducted at arn’s hength. B similar assets o observable vackel prices luss i 1 eosts tor disposing o the ase The valwe n s
caleulation is based on a DCF madel and the cash flows are devived from the budgel for the nexy five years, The recoverable ananl is
seisitive 1o 1he discount rate wsed for the DUF modad as well as the expected Muiire cash-infMows and the growih mie wsed Tor cxirapoladion
paTposes.

Diefined benesie plans (gratoiry benelins)

The ¢ost of the delined Benctit grality plan and other post-cmployment benelil and tive prosent valug of the gratuity obligation arc determis!
usmg aeigirial vadieions, An actoarial valamion ovelves making various assumplions tat may difter from scaal developments in the Tutore,
these inchwde 1he determination of the discaunt vte, finwee salary ingreases and montality rates. Tue fo complexities irvolved i the vahtaon
and s fong e nabure, o delined benefit ollgzation i highly sensitive to changes in these plions. All plions ate revicwed al cach

The parameter moest subject 1o changs s the discom! rale, In deteri Hie approprate discomnl rate for plins operated in India, the
managenent considers (he inferest ale of povernment bonds in eurrencies consistent with the cuerencics of the pest-cmployment benefil
ubligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table in India, The mortality tables tend Lo change only ar intervad in
) o tf ) Tiages, Further sakiry inereases and prduily increases are based on expechel future inflation rates. Further delails
about e gratuily obligalions arc given in Note 25,

Uscful life of asscrs 1 for depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment and awverlisation of Intanpible asseis

The charge in pespect of periedic depreciationfamorisanon s derived after detemmining on estimale of an asset’s expected vseful life and he
expected residual vildue at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are deteenined by management a ihe
time the assct is acquived and reviewed 0 each hingneial vear end, The Trees uee Based on echnical advice, prior asset usige experience and the
risk of technalogical ohisolescence,

Taxes

Nefarmed lax assels are recognised for unused kax losses tr the extent thal il is probable that xable protil will be available apaing which the
losses can be wiilised. Signil erngit judyement by required o detenmine the amout of deferred lax assels thal can be recognsed.
Dazead s the Likely tinving and the lewel o iy taxable prodits wgether with fuune ws pls g stralegivs. Refer nole nngd.

Significant judgements are ftvolved m determimmg the provision For income lxes. meluding the amount eapecred 1o be paid or recovered in
1 willl uncertain G positions.

Fair value caienl of 6 fal instr

When the fair vaboes of Tinancial assers and Toancial habilities recorded inthe balance shieet canol be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their far value is measined nging valuation echaiques including the DCF model, The nputs W these models are taken from
observable markels whene possible, but where this is mot feasible, a degroe of judgment is required m cstalshing tain values. hudgements
inglude considerations of inputs such as Hauidity tek. eredil visk and volatility. Changes n osswmplions aboul these factors could affeet 1he
reported Jair valoe of linancial msioamems. Refer note 29 for Trther disclosures,

5

e are wod recognised in the fnancial stalements but are diselosed o the notes, They are assessed continually Lo detenining
whether an ealllvsy ol resowrees ensbodying ceenomic benelis has becone prebable. 1T i heeones probable that an outliow o futuwe ceonomic
benelits will be required For an item previewsty deal wih as o contmgend Dability, o provision @ secognised e fimwaial stalements ol e
peviod i whick the charge in probability occurs {except, in the extremely rare circamstances where no reliable estimate can e magde).

Contingend T
Contingent

Other esiimates:

The preparation of Tinaacial statements involves estimates und asswmptions thal affect the reported amount of assets, liabilites, disclosure of
comingent labilities at the date of financial siatements and the repartad ameunt of revennes and eapenses tor 1he 1eporting period. Specifically.
the Company cstimates the probability of collection of accoums reeeivalile by arical paymenl patlern
customer credit-warthiness and cument economic trends. 11 the Minancial condition of 3 eustoner deteriorates, additional allowanees may be
Tespuired.

CUSEOINGT L0 CILE L RS,

Crperating segimend
The Boaed of Dircetors have been identified o the Chief Qperating Decision Maker (COTM) as defined by TNI-AS 108, Operaling Segnye




Keystone Business Sobutions Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity tor the period ended 31 Mar 2023
{Allamounts in R, lakhs, unless otherwise stated?

a, Equity share capital:

Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital

Amount in Rs

Balance as at April 1,2022

Changes in equity

Changes in Equity

share eapital due to Restated Balance as at Share Copital during  Badance as at Mar

prior peried errors April 1,2022

the Year

31,2023

4.26

- 4.26

4.26

Amount in Rs

Balawee as i April 1,2022

Changes i cquity

Clhiauges in Equily

share capital duc to Restated Balance as at Share Capital during  Balance as at Mar

prior period errors April 1,2022

the Year

31,2023

4.26

- 4.26

4.20

* Also vefer nole 14

. Other equity

Attributahble to
Equity holders of the Company Tetal other equity
Remeasurment of
Reserves and snrplus
Farticulars post employ ment
benetit obligation, net
Sceorities premiom|  Retained carnings ot tax (Othc‘r Tutak
Comprebensive
lucomed

For the period ended 31 Mar 2022
As at 1 April 2021 61,08 1.4, 37 12,43 1L073.85
Profii for the Period - (22.37) (22.37)
Other comprehensive income - 11.34 11.34
Total comprehensive incomme 61.05 978.00 2337 LO62.83
Jess | Distribution - - -
As at 3 Mar 2022 G108 978,00 23.77 1,062.83
As at 1 April 2022 6105 97800 2377 1.062.83
Profit for the Peried - 061 .6l
Other comprehensive incone - -
Total comprehensive income 61.05 968,39 .77 1,053.21
less : Distribution - - -
As al 31 Mar 2023 61.05 965.39 23,77 1,053.21
® Also refer noke 15
Summary of significant accounting
podicies Mole ne. 3

The accompanying notes are an integral pacl of the standalone financial statements,

As per our teport al even date

For Narayanas Patil and Ramesh

ICAl Firm Registration Number @ 0023958

Chartered Acconntants

Srikinth v
Pariner
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For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors
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Ramani Dathi
Director
DN OB296675

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 09, 2023

VL N

laka Chanda
Iirector
DIN; (3RS 6604

Plage: Bangalore
Drale: My 09, 2023



Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
MNotes fo the standalone tinancial stalements for the peniod ended 31 Mar 23
(Al amounis in Bs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Property, plant and equipment

Office Furnifure &

cawipment Camputers fixturcs Vehicles Tatal
Gross Carvying Amount at 1 April 2020 0407 - - - 007
Addlitions - - - - -
[risposals - - - - -
As ab 31 Mareh 2021 0.07 - - - 007
Additions - - - - -
Dhsposals - - - - -
Asat 3] Mar 2022 .07 - - - 7
Asat Ist April 2022 07 - - - 07
Additions - - - - -
Dispowsasls, - - - - -
As at 31 Mar 2023 0.07 - - - 0,07
Accunmlated depyeciation
Asal 01 April, 2020 0.06 - - - 0.4
Charge during the year [[R1]] - - - a1
Drispusaly - - - - -
Asut 31 March 2021 04y - - - 007
Charge during the yeuar - - - - -
Drispuasals - - - - -
As ol JEMur 2022 0.07 - - - 047
As at 1st Aprit 2022 {007} - - - {0.07)
Charge during the year - - - - -
DHsposals - - - - -
As a3 Mar 2423 (.07} - - - (.07
Net Carrying Ameani
Asat 31 March 2421 000 - - - 04K}
As at 31 Mar 2022 NI - - - 000
As at 31 Mar 2023 2.00 - - - 0.00
MNote 5: Other Intangille assets
Customer Software -
Relationships Others Total
{HRIS}
Gross Carrying Amount at 1 April 2020 184 .99 .41 145,39
Additions - - -
Phspasals - - .
As at 3 March 2021 144,40 0.4l 11540
Additions - - -
Dispasals - - -
As at 3§ Mar 2022 184,99 041 185.40
As 0 15t April 2022 13499 o4l 1R8540
Addhitions - - -
Disposals - - -
As at M Mar 2023 184.99 0.41 1R540
Acenmlated amortisation
As af i1 April, 2020 37.00 0.36 3136
Charge during the year 37.00 0.04 3704
Disposals - - -
As at M March Z021 460 [r.40 Td4u
Charge during the year 37 - 37.00
Disposals - - -
Asat 31 Mar 2022 11099 040 11144
Asal kst April 2022 11099 0.4} 11144
Charge during the year 372.00 - 3700
Ehisposals - - -
Asai 31 Mar 20923 147.99 1140 148.40
Net Carrving Amonnt
As ot 31 March 2021 [REFR 0.l Lo
As at 3 Mar 2022 74.00 0.06 .00
Ax ol 31 Mar 2023 o 0.0 37.00
Notes:

1. There has been no impairment losses recognised during (the year o provious year,




Keystone Business Selutions Private Linited

HMales 10 the ko £

Note 6; Loans

Nom-current
(Unseeurad. considered good)

Current

Lot b veloted grartios {Tepayable on Temand)

Note 7;: Other linwcral assels

Current

for the perioad emdes] 31 Mar 23
(Al anwounts in R lakhe, maless othenwise st}

31 Mar 2623

31 Mar 2022

{0.00)

235,00

D)

135400

31 Mar 2023

M Mar 2022

Tokeriest averwed on ixed deposits 17 i 58
1947 0.5%
Mote B Deferred tax assetsilinlilities)
31 Mar 2023 M Mar 2022
Dreierred tax assersd labilities)y - 269
- .64
. Provision for
Peovision far Drepreciation lvave
Aval bad and P Others Totad
N on fixed assets ecocashment and
drubtéul debts .
graluily
L April 2024 1,73 (002 5.68 1.4% 6.87
ChawgefiCrodith:
Profir and loss 0.7 {1.40% 107 - 0,24
Chher comprehensive income - - 18y - t4.15)
31 March 2021 - (1.12) .87 0.4% 2.9%
Chargef{Credit):
Profil and loss - 2467 091 - 358
Other comprehensive income - - {3.82) - (3.82)
31 Mawrch 2022 - 1.55 .66 0.4% 2.69
Chargef{Crodit):
Tt sl luss - 557 - - RAT
Uther comprehensive iome - - - - -
Drerecongisition of Delerred Tax assel - {712} 106} [{LELT] 15.25)
JE Maveh 2023 P - - - -
Reconciliaiicon of deferred tax (net) 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Opening bakmee L4Y 93
Tax ereditd fexpensel during the peried wevopnized in stalement of proDit and [oss $.57 358
Tax expense during the period recognised in (01 - {330
Drerecongisition of Dulerred Tax assel (8.25) -
Closing balance - 160

= Ag al the reporting date, the

delerved tax asset will be vealised on the mrabuosrbed business losses and umibsarbed depreciation.

by certain that sulficient e taxable meomw will be available aganst which ihe

o
)
I}

BANGALORE



Keysretw Business Solaéions Private Linyiced
Nates 1o the Jaal i jub stat
(AN wwowm: i Rs kikhs, undess odherwise stated)y
Note % Fuconue by assets (net)

Advanee inoome b (oot o provision Far taxalion)

15 Lo the period cided 51 Mar 23

[ncome tax expense in the statenent of profit and loss consists of:

Current income 1ax clargs
Tax erechit For earlicr yeans
Pretenred tax creditf ety

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

Tncome rax recogoised in ol
comprehensive income

Meeferred lax avising on expensedineome}
recognised in other comprehensive incone
Mol kossd meing on rem
Income tax expense chiarged o OCI

Revonciliation of effcctive tax rate:

Profit befote tax

Tax using the Company's domestic tax ke
25170 {31 Mareh 20020 25, FT%40)

Tax effcet of;

MNon-decuctible wx expense

Capitad Guing

Peduetion u/is BIJIAA

Tax adinstmem for aarlier yens

Others

1 r

1% exy {income)

Nete 10: Trade receivables

{Unsccured considered poo) wiless other wise statedy

ernenls of defined benelin plans

3 Mar 2023 3§ Mar 2022
IR 4300
[3ET) .08

31 Mar 2023

3 Mar 2022

2.6%

(3.5%)

269

(1.5%)

M Mayr 023

30 Mar 2022

3.52

3482

3 Mar H23

31 Mar H22

14.54 125.95)
2%l 3.57
[0.48) -
2.3 A58

3 Mar 2023

M Mar 2022 -

Trade receivabless othwers 5257

Doublful - -
Llnbalbed Revenw: - 12.61
- 6498

loss:

Adkwance for doublful debis - -

- G4.9%
Fartivelars Oudstanding Tor folkowing periods from dle due date of Payment FY 2022-23
Less Than 6 & months - 1 Aore that 3

Mol D

il Year

1-2 ¥ears

2-3 Years

Years

(ol ndisputed frade receivable- considered
FuTe

(it Undispited trade receivable which have
gipmificant increase in credil risk

(iU ndisputed wade reegivalile- evedin
inpraived

Civilispited triade receivable- considered
o

(vilisputed 1eade receivable which have
sighilean increase in credit risk

(en) Disputed trade recevable- credil -

imprained

Less: Allowamee For dowbful reade
receivaldes - Rilked
Frade Receivables - Undifled

L'nial

2l g ANGALORE |-

7

=7
it




Keystone Business Selutions Private Limited
Wotes 1o the sizndalone Bracial statements for 1he periad eaded 31 Mar 23

{All i R dakhs, wiless otherwise stared)

Farticalars Outstanding for following periods Erom the due dafe of Payinent T'Y 2021-22
Tess Than 6 b months - 1 More (Baf 3

Not Due Months Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Vewrs Yearrs

FiFlispated trade reveivable- considered 52.37 - - - N N

pood

(i Unetisputed el veeeivable which have - - - - -

significant increase in credit visk -

{iinUndispuled trads receivalile- credit - - - - -

impaived -

(ivDispulee trade reveivable- considensd - - - - -

pood )

(valnsputed trade receivable which have - - - - -

sipriticanl merease in credit visk )

(i} Lisputed trade receivable- credil - - . - -
nmprrived

52,37 - - - - -
Luss: Allow:nee for doubilul trade
receivables - Billed
Trade Receivables - Unbilled [26]
Tulak 64.98
() Change in Unbilled Revenne
Balance at the beginning af the period 1261 56.39
Hevanne recognised during the peciod 4778 59293
Inwvevices vaised during the perivd (60.34) {636.71)
Batnee al the end ol {he period o [P

) Trade yeeedvables are non-interest boeawing,
bt Ne nade or wher recevabla are due (rom diveelors of olher afficers af the company eher severally of jomily with any other persen, Nov any trade or
<) The Company's saposae To eredit risk, currency risk and loss allowance oo leade receivables are diselosed m Note 30

Note 11: Cash and cash equivalents

M Mar 2023 3 Mar 2022

Batances with banks
- In cuneat accounds 1364 2017
Cashoon hand

18.64 A0.17

Mote 12: Bank bakanees other than cash and cash eguivalends

Doepmaits with retvioning soaturiy o Fess ghan 12 maonths O50.H) A30.00)

Dheposits with remaining matwricy of miorg than 12 mnths -
250.00 GS0.00

Less + Amownts disclosed under other financial assets (KReler note 7) -
450.00 G000
968.64 73017

For the purpose ol the stalement of cash lows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the Tollewing:

31 Mar 2023 3 Mar 2022 -

Hulunces with banks
- i eurrent aceounts 18.64 8017
Cash on hand - -
1504 AL )
Lassr Bamk overdrali - -
15.64 80.17

There are no repateiation restrictions with regard o eash and cash cquivalents at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.

Note BY: Oher enrrent assers

31 Mar 2613 M Mar 2022
(Ussecared considered good wtres other wise stoted) !

Prepaidd expenacs - (e
Advamcy o employecs or expoemics Q. g
Advances recoverable i cush or in kad 19.45 16
Adeances 1o Creditors a4l LG

(Hhers Adsels

12.16 -
2267 10.14




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Motes te the standalone Tnancil staterments for the period ended 31 Mar 23
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwize stated)

Note 14: Fquity share capilal

Equity share capital 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
(i} Authorised equity share eapital
100,000 (31 March 2023; 100,000} equity shares of Rs, 10 each, L1.G0 10.060

(i} TIssued, subseribed and iy paid-up shares
42,627 (31 Maich 2023; 42,627) cquity shares of Rs. 10 e¢ach, 4.26 4.20
TFuotal isswed, subseribed and fully paid-up shares 4.26 1.16

(Hi Terms! rights attached fo equily shares

The company bas vne class of equily shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. L the
event of liquidation, the cauity sharchoiders ave eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Congrny afler distribution of all preforential wmounts,
in propertion lo ther sharcholding.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is sulbject 10 the approval of the sharcholders m the ensoing Annual Geveral Mecting, weoepd
case of mterim dividoml

Mo shares held by Promotors, as DEP shares held by Teambease Digital Pyt Lid.




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited

Nates 1o the standalone tinanrcial statements for the pericd ended 31 Mar 23
(Al amounts i Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Neote 15: Other equity

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Securities promium account al05 (RIS
Retaimed camings 2397 231.97

84.82 B4.82

Securitics premium
Opening balance 61.05 o105
tncrease during the period - -
Closing halance G105 61.05
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 1.00].78 1,012 80
Met ProllA Loss) for the period (9.61) (22.37)
Other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained canvings -
- Remeasument of post cmployment benefit obligation, net of 1ax 11.34
Less : Appropriation during the period - -
Closing balance 992,16 1,001,78
Reserve & Surplus
Opening balanee 1.062.83 107385
Tnerease f (deerease} during the period {261 (1103
Clasiag balance 1,053.21 1,062.83
# For the movement of ulher eguity, also refer Statement of Changes in Bquity
Matwre and purpose of sther reserves
(1) Securitics premium reserve
Securitics premium reserve is used 1o record te premium on issve of shares, The reserve is wiilised in accordance with the provisions.sl the

Compunivs Act, 2013,




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial staternents for the perod ended 31 Mar 23
(AT amounts in Bs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

MNote 16: Provisions

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Nor-current
Employee benetits - Gratuity (Retfer note 28) - 2.62
Employee benefits - Leave Encashment - -

- 2.62
Current M Mar 2023 31 Mar 2622
Employee benefits - Gratuity {Refer note 28) - 0.00
Employee benefits - Leave Encashment -

- L0

Naote 17: Trade payables

Current 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022

Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small crierpriscs - -
{Fefer Mole 361

Total sutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and )49 74.36
sl enlerprises

1.4% 74.36
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date of Pavment FY 2022-23
Not Pue < 1year I year<2 2 years<3 Muore than 3
years years years
{iUndisputed - Trade Creditors
considered - Good - - - - -
{inUndisputed - MSME Tradc
Creditors considered - Good - - - - -
{1ii) Disputed Daes - MSME - - - - -
(iv} Disputed Dues - Others - _ _ . .
Accrued Expenses 1.4%
Total 1.49
Particulars Ontstanding for following periods rom the due date of Payment FY 2021-21
Neot Due < I year 1 year<2 2 vears<3 More than 3
years Vears years
(Undisputed - Trade Creditors
considered - Guod - 149 0.0% -
(iiUndisputed - MSME Trade
Creditors considersd - Good - 41 -
{iii} Disputed Dues - MSME
{iv) Disputed Dues - (thers -
- {1.90 0.01 - -
Accrued Expenses 7344
Loral 74,36
Nute 18: Other financial Kabilities
Current 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Emplayees Benetits Payable - 9.59
Creditors for employees 0.02 G.08
0412 9.67
Note 19: Other carrent liabilities
3 Mae 2023 31 Mar 2022
Statutory dues payable 06 7.50
Advance from Customers .00 0.00
Other Liabilities 300 0.00

Provigion for Income Tax

1106




Keystone Business Solwtions Private Limited
Mobes Lo the standaloae financial stalemenis for the period ended 31 Mar 23
(Al amounts in Bs. lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

Note 20; Revenue from eperations

(Nek of taxes) 31 May 2023 31 Marx 2022
Staltng Services RO.57 50293
Total revenue 89,57 592,93

Note 21: Other income

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Interest ingome on;
Deposits with banks 408} 7.60
Loan to related party 0.84 30.22
Llncome Tax Refunds 226 4444
Liabilities ne longer veguived written back 4.02 -
Total other income 47,93 41.87
Nete 22: Employee benefits expense

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Salaries, wages and bouus 58.41 38248
Gratuity expense (Refer note 28) - R
Contribution to provident fund and other tunds 142 112
Staff welbire expenses - 0.02
Other employee beneflt expenses 0.97 3.1
Total employee benetit expense 61.21 400,33
Note 23: Finance Cost 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Imerest on loans
Interest - Related Party -
Interest an late puyment of statutory dees -
Note 24: Depreciation and amortization expense

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Arorlisation of Intavsgible Assers 37.00 37.00

37.00 37.00

Mote 25: Other expenses

31 Mar 2023 31 Mav 2022
Rates & taxes 0.37 1.17
Legal aud professiona) charpes 3800 21893
Auditors' remuneration (Refer note below) 393

Sundry Balance Wrillen OFF 1,58
43.89




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Motes 1o the standalone financial statements for the period endod 31 Mar 23
{All amounts in Rz, lakbs, unless otherwise stated}

Mote 26: Income tax expense

3 Mar 2023

31 Mar 2022

Current income tax charge

Tax credit for earlier years (0d&) -
Dreferred tax :

Decrease/{Increase) in deferred tax 2.09 {3.58)
Ineome Tax expense for the peried N {3.58)
OCI section 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT during the period

Net lossi{gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans - 3.82
Income tax charged to QOCI - 3.82

Note 27: Earnings per share
The folowing reflects ihe income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 Mar 2023

3 Mar 2022

Profiti Loss) atiributable to equity shaveholders (6.80)
Norminal valne of cach couity share (Rs.) 10
Weighted average number of equily shares eutstanding during the year 42,627
EPS - busic and diluted {Rs.) (13.93)

(22.3%)
143

42,627

(52.4%})




Keystone Business Sotutions Private Limited
Notes to the standalene financial statements for the peried ended 31 Mar 23
(Al amounts in Bs. lakhs, unless otherwise staned})

Note 28: Emiployee benefit obllization
i) Leave Obligation
The leave oblipation cover the Company's hability for caried leave portaining (0 its core emplayees. which are classified as current and pon-
current benetits. The Bifurcation of the current and nen-cuiment is based on the past experience of employee's retivement, resignations or on kis
death on the basls of the salary he would be drawing at the fime of his Decaration from the Company. The company does not bave any core
cmployees as of the date of balonce sheet and accordingly the existing provision bas been teversed during the year.

Particulars 31 Mar 2023 31 Mayr 2022
Leave Obligalions not expected to be settled within the next |2 monthg - -

iiy Defined Comtribution plans

The Company also has cerlain defined contribution plans. Condributions are made to provident fund in lndja for employees a1 the rate of 2% of
the salary as per the regulations. The contribution are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amouar contributed and it has no further contracwal nor any constructive obligation. The expenses recognised during
the year towards defined contribugion plan {s Rs Nil 31 Mar 23, (Rs. 3.60 {akhs 31 Mar 2022, 31 March, 2021: Rs, 1099 lakhs).

(it} Gratoity

The Company has delined benefil gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the
acl, every employee who has completed 4 years and 2446 days of service are eligible for gratuity on departure af 15 days salary {last drawn} lur
each completed year of service. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s fenyth of service and salary at retirement,

These plans typieally expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate rigk, longevity risk and salary risk,

Investiment risk The present value of the delined benelit plan abibity is caleulated using a discount rate
which is defennined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on

Government bonds. If the plan assets underperform this yweld, this will ereate a deficil,

Intgrest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan lishility,

Longevily risk The: present value of the defined beoefil plan liability 15 calewbated by reference o the best
estimate of the mortality of plan parhcipants both during aod aiter their employment. An
inerense in e e expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's lability.
Salary nsk The present value of the defined benefit plan linbility is calculated by references to the Qe
salaries of plan participanks, As such, an increase v the salary of the plan participants will
inerease the plan's hatality.

The following table summarise the components of net benefit cxpense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the fanded status and
amounls recognised in the balance sheel for the gratity plan:

Net defined benefit liahility/ (assevs)

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Present value ol unfunded obligation - 262
Fair value of plan assets - -
MNet linbility - .62
MNet henefit cost recoznised in stat t of profit and loss

31 Mar 2023 3 Mar 2022

Current service cost [2.62) 2.62
Past Serviee Cost - -
Interest cost on defined benefil aldigation - .98
Net benelit expense {2.62) .60
Remeasurement  Joss/(gains) im  other 3 Mar 2023 31 Muar 2022
comprehensive ircome
Particulars
Pue 1o change i finamcial assumptions - 171
Due wr change in experfence adjostiments - LR ¥

Acturial luss recognised in OCI - {15.16)




Keystone Business Selutivns Privace Limited
Noles to the standalone financial statemesnts for the period ended 31 Mar 23
(A amounts in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Chanpes in present vatue of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balawces thereof are as follows

Particulars 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Defined benefit obligation ai beginning of the period 2.62 T4.18
Current service cost (2.62) 2.62
Past Scrvice Cost - -
Inlerest cost on defined benefit obligation - (L.OF
Benelits paid - -
Rewversal - -
Re-measurements - -
Acluarial {gain) / loss arising lrom changes in financial assumpiions - 1.7}
Acluartal {gain} / fovs anising from changes in experience adjustments - (L6371
Defined benefic obligation at end of the period - 2.62

31 Mar 2023

31 Mar 2022

Curent 0.0 8.02
Non-current (0.00) 260
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation are shown below:
31 Mar 2023 31 May 2022
Discount rate T.00%,
Sakary esclation rate [
Expected remaining working lives ol employees (years) 28.05
Adlrition rale 195 1 8%
\ NA
Rutirement age ol

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(23 2-143 UK Table

Mortality rables

Note:
1) The estimates of fulnre salary increase, considersd in acturial valuation, takes indo account inflation, scniority, paramcter and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in employment matter,

Sensitivity analysis
A quantitative sensitivity anabysis For significant assumptions on delined benefl obligation as ar 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 arc as
shown below:

Discount rate Salary esclation rate

A1 Mar 2023 3 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2023 3 Mar 2022
1% increase - 226 - .08
1% decrease - kKL - 224

Abtrition rate

3 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
194 inerease - .54
1% decrease - 21

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a methed that extrapelates the impact of defined benefil obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions vsed at the end of the reprting period.

The following payments ave expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in futwre years

31 Mar 2023 M Mar 2022

Yoear 1 - {0,000
Year 2 - 0.01
Yoar 3 - 0.0]
Yoo 4 - a1
Year § - 0.25
Muxl 5 vears - 1.0%

The Company expects to contribate Rs Nil
The weighted average duration of defined benelit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7.33 vears.




Keystone Business Selutions Private Linited
Mees 10 the standalone fnancial siatements tor the period ended 31 Matr 23
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Note 291 Fair value measurements

Fimgncinl instrmnents by category and hierarchy

3 Mareh 2023

Particulars Amertised cost FVOCT FVTPL
Financial Assets
Foans - - -
Treade recervables - - B
Cash and cash eguivalenls 15 04 - -
ank balances ther than cash and cash equivalents 93000 - -
hher Anancial assets 1407 - -
Total financial assets 987.72 - -
Financial libalities
Trade payahles bAY - -
Other linancial Jbilities 0.02 - -
Totad (imancial fiabilidies 1.51 - -
PFarticudars Hn Mill‘t’l. 2022

Amortised cost FY 0L 'VTI'L
Financial Assets
Lavans 235.00 - -
Trade receivables 008 - -
Cash and cash equivalens Ko7 - -
Bank balanves other than cash and casly cquivalents D000 - -
Other {inancial nssels 5% - -
Totul financial assets E030.73 - -
Fi sial libalities
Trude prayalblos 437 - -
Oher linanvial Habalites 9.67 - -
Total financinl liabilities #4.03 - -

sessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, foans receivable, trade receivables, trade payables, other financial
ing wnonnts fargely due ko the short-tenm maturities of these instruments.

Management ha
ussety and liahi

s approxintale their c

The tair value of the finaneial assets and labilities is included in the amount ar which the instraments conld be exchanged in a cument
ransaction between falfilling parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

The [air values of seeurily deposits are deterimined based on disc 1 cush Tow method caleulated using discount vate that veflects the
issuers borrpwing rate for the resp financial asseVTiability as al the end of the reporting perivd.

Fair value hicrarchy

Financial assets and Boancial Hahilitics measured ar fair value inothe statement of financial position are grouped into thres ewels of a fair
vatlue hivrarchy. The thiee Levels ane ditined based on the observability of sigmilcat inputs (o e messurement, as follows:

leweed ol ly ik, mensured bsing quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets. This

Level 1: Thi chy includes fnancial oxsets aud b
categary consists of investment in mumal funds.

Lewved 2: The fair valve of financial mstnmients that are ool baded in an aetive market is determined using valuation technigques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litkde as possible on entity specilic eslimates,

Level 3: 1F onc or more of the significast mpus is not based on observable market data, e instrooent 15 eluded io fevel 3.
This is the cuse Lo investment i unquoted preference shaves included s Leve] 3.

Note 30: Financial risk management obicitives and policies

1} The Company’s board of directors bave the overall responsibility of the establist and ight uf it risks management Framework,
it} The Company™s principal linancial liabilitics comprise trade and other payables. The Company’s principal Tinancial assets include
inscstments, oo, ade and other reeeivabies, cish and cash equivalents and other ok babnees that derive directly from s opeetions,
11} The Company’s activities exposes il to market risk, lguidity risk and credil risk.

v} These visks are identified an @ continuons basis and assessed for the impact on the linaneiad performance, The Board of Divectors
seviews and agrecs policies for managimg cach of these sk, which ave summadsed below,

{a} Markel risk

Market visk is the visk that the fair value of futuce cash Mows oF a financial insteament will Moctuate because of changes
Wlarket risk comprises two types of visk: intorest vate visk and foreign curveney sk

Finaneial instroments affectsd by market risks inclode trade receivable and trade payable,

in markel prices,




Keystone Business Selutions Private Limited
iMotes 1o the standalone Tinancial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 23
fAlLamounts o Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise staged)

(i} Foreign Corrency Risk
Foreign curceney risks is the risk that the Bir value or future cash Nows of an ex| will 10 b se 0l ¢  [oreien earrency
Fates, The Compony docs not have s cam Torcign currency exposire and hence i nol exposed 1o any significant forctgn curreney nsks.

{ii} [nleresi rate risk

Inlevest rate risl is the visk that the fair value or future cash Mows of the Company’s Nnancial Instruments will Auctuale because of changes
th market interest eates, The Company does oot have significant debr obligation with foatityy interest rates. henee is nol exposed W any
nifieaul inderest rale risks.

(b Credit visk

Credit risk is U risk dust counterparty will not meed ils contractal obligations under a linancial insiranment o customer conteacd, Jeading u
a foancial loss, The Company s exposed o ceedil nsk from {18 operating activitics {prinanily trade receivables and contract assets) and
Tromn 1l finemcing activities with banks and financial instindions, ke ceevivablbes, mvestmens and ather Tmancial instruments.

Trade reccivahies

With respect wo imde reecivables and conteact assels, the Company has constituied the terms w review the receivables on periodic basis and
tor take nevessary mitigations, wherever iequired. The Company creates allwvance for all unsecmed receivables based on lifieime expected
eredit loss based on a provision matrix. The provision magrix wkes into account historical credil loss experienee and is adjusted tor forward
leoking information. The cxpectod credit loss allowance 15 based on the ageing of the receivables that are due wnd rates used i the
PrO¥ISIoNn magnx.

Munagement docs ool expect any significant Toss from won-perfirmance by counierpaniies on credil grantzd during the financial year tha
has not heen provided for,

Assets under ¢reddit risk M Mar 2023 31 Mar 2022
Trage receivable - [ R H
Lo 1o related parly - 23500
Cther fimangial asscls 1947 58
Total 19.07 300.56

Financial instrunent and cash deposit

Credit risk Gom balances with the banks and financia] institutions and cument mvestimenl ate managed by the Company's treasury leam
birsed o the Company's policy. Investment of surplus fund is made only with appreved connlerparties,

Counterparty credit limits aee reviewed by the company peniodically and the limits are sei to minimise the concentration of risks andl
theretore mitigate fnascal loss through coumerpartys poledial filare Lo muke payments.

¢ due. The objeciive of Hyuidity
ciend liquidity and ensure (hat funds are available o meed s labilitics when due, inder both normal
and stressed conditions, withoul incurring wnaceeplable losses or visking damage 10 the Companys repotation. The Company manitors ils
risk of a shortage of fands on o regular basis, The Company’s objectivie 15 0 maintain a bal bebween imuity of Tmding and
Nexibility throagh the use of ank overdrafs.

The talile below summarises te malurity profile of e Comgany’s inanciat Tiabilities baged on contractual undiscounted payments.

£-1 vear 1-2 years 2 years and above Totak

As at 21 March 2023
Trade payables - N
Oiber financial liabilities 0.2 - - 0.z
43.11 - - D42

As at 31 March 2022
Tracle payabhes 3 - - 7144
Orher {inancial liabilities 9,67 - - 2.67
00§ 0.01 0.01 0.01

Note JE: Capital management
The key objective of the Company s capital management is o ¢rsure that it maintaing a stable capital sructuve with the focus on total equity
The Company focused on keeping

o uphold mvestor, creditor and customer confidence and to ensore falure development of s busine
strong capital base ko ensure independence, 1o ensune sustained growd in business.

The Campany is predominantly cquity Tnanced. To muiatain and adjust capital strreture, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o
shavelolders, reluvs capital (o sharehoklers or issue new shares,

The Company has very minimat amounl of borrowings apd mainly funded traugh cquity, te existing suplus fnds aloog with Be cush
generated by te Company are sulficient 10 meet 115 currentfmon-currend obligation and workiog capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ralio, which s net dell divaded by lotal equity plos net debl axs belne:
- Equity inclades equity share capital and all ather equity compoments, which are alivibutable 1 e sguity holders
- Mel Debt includes interest beating borrownags less cash and equivakents.




Keystone Business Solutions Private Linited
Naotes to lhe lalene bi ul 5 for the period ended 31 bar 23
(A amounts i Re. lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

3t Mar 24023

31 Mareh 2022

Curranl berrowings -

{(21.25)

Luss: Cash and gasi eyuivalents 13017}

Mt debt (A) [#0.17} {21,28)
Eyuity share camlal 4.26 420
Cther eguity 1,062 83 1,073 36
Equity {B) L067.09 1,078.12
Equity plus net debi (C=A+B) 98692 1,056.84
Geariag ratio (B=A/C) 0.00%, .00
In wrder o achieve the weerall objective, the Company's capital amongst other things, aims wensure that i0meets Gnancial

covenants allached o the mlerest-bearing borowmes that define capital shuclure requirements. Any significant breach in wmeeting the
financial covenants woukl allow the bank w call bormowings. There have been na breaches in the finanvial covenants of above-mentioned

nderest-bearing borrowings.

Mo changes were made i the abpectives, policies or processes foe managing capital dunng the current and proevioes years,




Keystone Basiness SoJutions Privale Limited

MNoles to the dakone
{Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless olhersise stated}

Note 32: Related party disclosure

(i) List of related parties sl velationship:

ancial foi the period ended 31 Mar 23

Description of relationship

Names off the related partivs

a) Ultinnade Helding Company

11 Helding Company

¢) Key management personmel and their relatives

(i) Transactivns with related parties

Teamease Services Limiled {'TSLY

TeamLease Digilal Private Limited {formedy TeamLease SiafTing
Services Private Limited} ('TOPLY

Ms. Ramani Dahi - Divevior (appointed woe £ Janwary 21, 200493
Ms, Adaka Chanla- Director {appointed wel. March 23 2021)
Ms. Ritupara Chakraborty- Tinsctor (ppointed wee £ Manch 23, 2021)

Transacticns with related parties

31 Alar 2023

M Mar 2022

Loans and advances recelved Tenny
Huelding Company

TRPL

Loans vepaid to

Hutding Company

TIZPL

Interest expense om loan
Holding Company

TDI'L

Loans and addvances given to
Fellow Subsidiary Company
TOPL (Formerly Bvolve)
Loans repaid by

Felow Subsidiary Company
TDPL {Formerly Evolve)
lukerest income ow lean
Fellow Subsidiary Company
TOPL (Formerly Evolve)
Cunsullaney/Professional charges
Ultimate Holding Company
TS

Holding Company

TRPL

Rent Paicd

Halding Company

TDPL.

23500

084

Reimbursemend of expenses incwrred by company ma behall of olbers

Hedding Company
TI3PL.

Reimt £ af ex3 incurred an hehalf of company

Hikling Company
TDPL
Purchase of Intangible asset

Tekding Company
TBPL

‘Frade Receivables taken vver
Halding Company
TOPL

,738.00

&876.00

2z

21746

.32

023




Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited

Notes 1o the standabone fimancial stalements for the periad ended 3+ Mare 23
(Al amounts in Ra. lakhs, onless otherwise stated)

iy Outstanding Balaees as al peried caded

Tiw following balanees are outstanding at the end of (e reporting perivd in relation te fransactions with related partics:

M Mar 2423 31 M 2022

Loans recelvable
Fellow Subsidiary Company
TP tFormerty Byvalve) - 23500

Sundry Debtors

Ulirmate Hulding Cotnpany

TSL

Holling Company

TOPL {Unbilledy - 0,63

Sundry Creditors

UTtimate Halding Company

TSL - -
Holding Company

THORL . 67,41

Terms and conditions of transactions with related pariies
I The disclpsure i transactions with related parties are made on lerms cquivalenl woan arms lenglh tmmsaction s only made @6 an entily can
sabstantiate such terms

Nate 33: Contingent Linbilities
The company docs not Bave any contingent lability 1 current year.

MNote 34: Commitments
{ak Capital commifments
Estivnated amrount of condracts remaining to be exceuted on capital acosunt and net provided for as an

31 Mar 2023 M Mar 2022

Progerty, plant and equipment hd -

Mote 35: Non-taneellable Leases
Mo Leage agreements exisked during the linancial year

Note 36: The Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises Developtaent Act, 20006
Baged on the information available with the Company, there are one suppliers who are registered as micro or medium enterprises under The Micro,
Siall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as al March 31, 2023 Bs Ml € Marcl 31, 2022 R 41 2085).

31 Mar 2023 31 Mae 2022
The princigal amoant and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid o any supplier s al the end of cach
accounling year:
=Prineipal mmount due to migra and small enlerprises - 041

-Interest due on gbove - .

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 14 of the MSMED Act 2000 along with the
amounts o the payment made ta the supplicr beyond the appobnted day during the accounting year - .

The amount of interast due and pavable for the period of delay In making payment Cwhich havee boen paid

bt beyoml the appuinted day during (he vear) Tt withoot adding te inlecest specifbet under the - -
MEMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest acenied and remsining wapad a the end ol the secounting yvear . -
The aount af Biiher interest remsining due and payable even in rhe suececding years, untl such Jate

when the interest dues as above are actually paid (o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowamee as - -
a deductille expenditure under sevtion 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Note 37: Dedaction under seetion SHJJAA

Mo deduetion availed during the current financial year




Keystone Business Selutions Private Limited
Notes to ihe standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 Mar 23
(Allamounis in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 38: Events Oceurring After (he Reporting Pertod
Mo Such events during the finanacial year,

Note 39: Previgus Year Figures
The Ggures of the previous periods have been regroupediveclussitied, where necessary, to conforn with the current year's
classificalion.

Nate did: Note an Going Convern

The company has made an application with the ‘National Company Law Tribunal® {(NCLT) for 2 ‘scheme of amalgamation® of the
company with its parent company ‘Teamlease Digital Private Limited' dated 17th August, 2022 with Ist April, 2022 being the
appointed date and 15 awaiting the decision of the WCLT as on the date ol signing this financial statement. The conpany alse has ne
active customer conlracts currently and has aceordingly let go of all its employees. The linancial statements have been prepared by the
management on a going concern basis,

For Narayanan Patil and Ramesh For andl on belalf of ¢he Board of Directors
I[CAI Firm Registration Number : 23955 Keystone Business Solutions Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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Keysione Business Solutlons Privide Limited
Mates Lo the dalnie financial
FAL amems in Bs. lalkhs, wless atherwise statedy

Note 41: Analytical Ratins

fior the peryod ended 31 bMar 23

%o of
Change in
Ratio Ratio Ratio
Numerator Denominalor Cureent Previons  Variance Remarks
Pering Period
atCucrent Ratin Larrenl Asscls Current Liabilities 430 1137 64209 78% Suce the Compaty Tiled
ierger Application with its
Huiding Company at RCLT all
the labilitics cither pakl of Cor
reversed, And all the
receivakles relaised inovish
b Deba-Eguity Ratio Total Bebl Sharcholders Equity - (00
et Service Coverage Ratio Lambitiges b et service - Dbt service = nlerest £ Lese - £.00%
Nel proditafier iaxes + Non- Payients + Principal
crlloperating expenses Repayments
Rty Eanity Ralie Mot Profit Afler Taxes- Average Sharcholder's Eouity (1L L) ERO2Y T2 Associale Head Count
Preference Dividend Roctlued which havee an Tiapag
wn o Oross banmn, whereas
other  costs Jike Suppurd
Charges & Amartization
remaing sne.
e} lnvendpry turaoyver ratfe Cost ol Goods Sold or Sales Average Inventory - - LERE
Trade Recoivablcs turnoves yatiy Mt creil sales = Gross Average Accounts Receivables #RIE 8% #REFY Duc o Reduction in the Head

vredil sades - sales retum

retum
hy Net capita] torpover: ratin

relum

id Net profit ratio Mot Prafi

1 Retuyn o3 Capital esnployad

Lxes

IRt [0 LTS 0

Fer Narayanan Patil and Bamish
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Chartered Accountianls
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Mt eredit purchises = Chnoss
credit purchases - purclise

Met sales = Tolal sales - sales

Eamings hetore mierest ad

Juterest i Finarwee: Incemey

Average Trade Payubles

Working capital = Curment
assels — Curnent Habilitivs

Revernie Trom COpermtion

Capital Employed = Tangible
Med Waorth + Total Debe +
Deterved Tus Liubiliey

Ivesiment

L1

LUy

0

{000}

For amd on behall of the Board of Direclors
Keysione Bllsinﬂiﬁ‘&llllliolls Frivate Limiled

Ramani Dahi
Drrecior
PN, 2296675

Flace: Bangaluie

e Bay O, 2023

Count Numburs  Reveoue

Drecreased.

kN L6.344%

0.2 2% Duc @ Reduction in the Head
Count Numbers  Revenoe
Decreased,

{104} K927 Duwe w Reduction in the
Asseoiite Heamd ot
Numbers Revenue Duecieased
bul  taher  Cost Renw
siilar,
o -0A3% Due w Reduwction in the
Ansuiale Heand ot
Numbers Revenve Deaeised
Bemaing
- (r00%
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Keysione Busi Zolwtivas Private Limited
Nuoles tor the standalene financial statements for the period ended 2§ Mar 23
(All amounts in R, kzkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Moke 42: Cilrer Statutory Information

] The Company does not have any Benam properly, where any proceeding has been imtiated or pending against the Company
for holding any Benani property,

{ii The Company de net have any transactions with companies struck off.

(i) The Compuny do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(v} The Company bave nol Iraded or invested in Crypto currency or YVirlual Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ofher person{s) or entity(ics). incloding foreign entities
(Tntermudizeies) with the wnderstanding that the Intermediary shall:
(w)  divectly or indircethy Tend or invest e ofher persons or enliies identifed i aoy manner whatsoever by or ou behall'of the
compasy {UMNimale Beneficiaries) or
(k) provide any guarantee, securily or the like 1o ov on behall of the Ultimale Benefiviweics
{v1)  The Compmy have not received any fand fran any person(s) or entity(iss), incloding foreign entities (Funding Party) wilh the
understanding (whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise} that the Compragy shall:
{a)  directly or indirectly lend o1 invest in olher persons or entities identified in any mannes whatsoever by or on behall of the
Funding Paviy {Uimate Benelivianies) or
(b)Y provide any gouavantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uldmate Beneficiaries,

(viil  The Company have not any such transaction which is net regorded in the books of scoounts that fias been sumendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the 12z assessments under the ncome Tax Act, 1981 (such s, search or survey or auy otler
refevant provisions of the kscome Tax Acl, 1961

For Marayanan Patil and Ramesh For and an behall of the Board of Directors
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Kevstone Busi Solati Private Limit
Notes to the standalone financial statements o the puriod endded 31 Mar 23
(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless othervise stated)

Mote 43: Previows year
The ilgures of the previous pericds have been regroupedfreclassified, whene necessary, (o conform with the current yem's classification.

Foa: Marayanan Pl aaud Bamesh For and ou behalf of the Board of Directors
ICAL Firm Registration Mumber : 0023958 Keystone Business Sotutions Private Limited
Clartered Accountanis

s
. "
Srikanth V Ramani Dalhi
Partner Director Director
Membership Ty 241134 DIN: DR296GT5 DIN: GRE36604
Mace: Bangalore Place: Bangalove Place: Bangalore

Date: May 09, 2023 Date: May 09, 2023 Diater May 09, 2023



